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§ 636.110 What procedures may be 
used for solicitations and receipt of 
proposals? 

You may use your own procedures for 
the solicitation and receipt of pro-
posals and information including the 
following: 

(a) Exchanges with industry before 
receipt of proposals; 

(b) RFQ, RFP and contract format; 
(c) Solicitation schedules; 
(d) Lists of forms, documents, exhib-

its, and other attachments; 
(e) Representations and instructions; 
(f) Advertisement and amendments; 
(g) Handling proposals and informa-

tion; and 
(h) Submission, modification, revi-

sions and withdrawal of proposals. 

§ 636.111 Can oral presentations be 
used during the procurement proc-
ess? 

(a) Yes, the use of oral presentations 
as a substitute for portions of a written 
proposal can be effective in stream-
lining the source selection process. 
Oral presentations may occur at any 
time in the acquisition process, how-
ever, you must comply with the appro-
priate State procurement integrity 
standards. 

(b) Oral presentations may substitute 
for, or augment, written information. 
You must maintain a record of oral 
presentations to document what infor-
mation you relied upon in making the 
source selection decision. You may de-
cide the appropriate method and level 
of detail for the record (e.g., 
videotaping, audio tape recording, 
written record, contracting agency 
notes, copies of offeror briefing slides 
or presentation notes). A copy of the 
record should be placed in the contract 
file and may be provided to offerors 
upon request. 

§ 636.112 May stipends be used? 

At your discretion, you may elect to 
pay a stipend to unsuccessful offerors 
who have submitted responsive pro-
posals. The decision to do so should be 
based on your analysis of the estimated 
proposal development costs and the an-
ticipated degree of competition during 
the procurement process. 

§ 636.113 Is the stipend amount eligi-
ble for Federal participation? 

(a) Yes, stipends are eligible for Fed-
eral-aid participation. Stipends are 
recommended on large projects where 
there is substantial opportunity for in-
novation and the cost of submitting a 
proposal is significant. On such 
projects, stipends are used to: 

(1) Encourage competition; 
(2) Compensate unsuccessful offerors 

for a portion of their costs (usually 
one-third to one-half of the estimated 
proposal development cost); and 

(3) Ensure that smaller companies 
are not put at a competitive disadvan-
tage. 

(b) Unless prohibited by State law, 
you may retain the right to use ideas 
from unsuccessful offerors if they ac-
cept stipends. If stipends are used, the 
RFP should describe the process for 
distributing the stipend to qualifying 
offerors. 

§ 636.114 What factors should be con-
sidered in risk allocation? 

(a) You may consider, identify, and 
allocate the risks in the RFP document 
and define these risks in the contract. 
Risk should be allocated with consider-
ation given to the party who is in the 
best position to manage and control a 
given risk or the impact of a given 
risk. 

(b) Risk allocation will vary accord-
ing to the type of project and location, 
however, the following factors should 
be considered: 

(1) Governmental risks, including the 
potential for delays, modifications, 
withdrawal, scope changes, or addi-
tions that result from multi-level Fed-
eral, State, and local participation and 
sponsorship; 

(2) Regulatory compliance risks, in-
cluding environmental and third-party 
issues, such as permitting, railroad, 
and utility company risks; 

(3) Construction phase risks, includ-
ing differing site conditions, traffic 
control, interim drainage, public ac-
cess, weather issues, and schedule; 

(4) Post-construction risks, including 
public liability and meeting stipulated 
performance standards; and 

(5) Right-of-way risks including ac-
quisition costs, appraisals, relocation 
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delays, condemnation proceedings, in-
cluding court costs and others. 

§ 636.115 May I meet with industry to 
gather information concerning the 
appropriate risk allocation strate-
gies? 

(a) Yes, information exchange at an 
early project stage is encouraged if it 
facilitates your understanding of the 
capabilities of potential offerors. How-
ever, any exchange of information 
must be consistent with State procure-
ment integrity requirements. Inter-
ested parties include potential offerors, 
end users, acquisition and supporting 
personnel, and others involved in the 
conduct or outcome of the acquisition. 

(b) The purpose of exchanging infor-
mation is to improve the under-
standing of your requirements and in-
dustry capabilities, thereby allowing 
potential offerors to judge whether or 
how they can satisfy your require-
ments, and enhancing your ability to 
obtain quality supplies and services, 
including construction, at reasonable 
prices, and increase efficiency in pro-
posal preparation, proposal evaluation, 
negotiation, and contract award. 

(c) An early exchange of information 
can identify and resolve concerns re-
garding the acquisition strategy, in-
cluding proposed contract type, terms 
and conditions, and acquisition plan-
ning schedules. This also includes the 
feasibility of the requirement, includ-
ing performance requirements, state-
ments of work, and data requirements; 
the suitability of the proposal instruc-
tions and evaluation criteria, including 
the approach for assessing past per-
formance information; the availability 
of reference documents; and any other 
industry concerns or questions. Some 
techniques to promote early exchanges 
of information are as follows: 

(1) Industry or small business con-
ferences; 

(2) Public hearings; 
(3) Market research; 
(4) One-on-one meetings with poten-

tial offerors (any meetings that are 
substantially involved with potential 
contract terms and conditions should 
include the contracting officer; also see 
paragraph (e) of this section regarding 
restrictions on disclosure of informa-
tion); 

(5) Presolicitation notices; 
(6) Draft RFPs; 
(7) Request for Information (RFI) ; 
(8) Presolicitation or preproposal 

conferences; and 
(9) Site visits. 
(d) RFIs may be used when you do 

not intend to award a contract, but 
want to obtain price, delivery, other 
market information, or capabilities for 
planning purposes. Responses to these 
notices are not offers and cannot be ac-
cepted to form a binding contract. 
There is no required format for an RFI. 

(e) When specific information about a 
proposed acquisition that would be nec-
essary for the preparation of proposals 
is disclosed to one or more potential 
offerors, that information shall be 
made available to all potential offerors 
as soon as practicable, but no later 
than the next general release of infor-
mation, in order to avoid creating an 
unfair competitive advantage. Informa-
tion provided to a particular offeror in 
response to that offeror’s request must 
not be disclosed if doing so would re-
veal the potential offeror’s confidential 
business strategy. When a 
presolicitation or preproposal con-
ference is conducted, materials distrib-
uted at the conference should be made 
available to all potential offerors, upon 
request. 

§ 636.116 What organizational conflict 
of interest requirements apply to 
design-build projects? 

(a) State statutes or policies con-
cerning organizational conflict of in-
terest should be specified or referenced 
in the design-build RFQ or RFP docu-
ment as well as any contract for engi-
neering services, inspection or tech-
nical support in the administration of 
the design-build contract. All design- 
build solicitations should address the 
following situations as appropriate: 

(1) Consultants and/or sub-consult-
ants who assist the owner in the prepa-
ration of a RFP document will not be 
allowed to participate as an offeror or 
join a team submitting a proposal in 
response to the RFP. However, a con-
tracting agency may determine there 
is not an organizational conflict of in-
terest for a consultant or sub-consult-
ant where: 
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